
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

City of Mt. Vernon, Illinois 
City Council Workshop Meeting 

Monday, January 14, 2013 
MINUTES 

 
 
The Mt. Vernon City Council held a City Council Workshop Meeting on Monday, January 14, 2013, at 
3:00 p.m. at City Hall, 1100 Main Street, Mt. Vernon, IL. 
 
Mayor Mary Jane Chesley called the meeting to order.   
 

            ROLL CALL 

 
Roll call showed present: Council Members Ron Lash, Dennis McEnaney, Todd Piper and Mayor Mary 
Jane Chesley.  Council Member David Wood was absent. 

       
RESIDENTIAL HOUSING PROGRAM PRESENTATION 

 

City Manager Ron Neibert advised that Joe Zanola and Rachel Ballard of the Zanola Company are 
present to discuss the City’s next phase of the Housing Feasibility Study that was conducted by the 
Zanola Company and presented to the City last year.  The study indicated a great need for housing in the 
community based on the job creation that has been and will be created in the City.   
 
Mr. Zanola then presented to the Council a proposal to promote housing development in the 
community.  Two spreadsheets were distributed regarding Zanola’s plan to launch the housing program.  
The spreadsheets are identical except that one indicates the budget range options for implementing 
each strategy of the program including Communication and Marketing Foundations; Development and 
Homebuilding Process Guide; New Homes Marketing Campaign Quick Start Phase; Professional 
Outreach Campaign Quick Start Phase; and Housing Growth Program General Responsibilities.  He noted 
that this is a web-based product with many different ways to be distributed to develop marketing and 
outreach – creating the City’s message to the world that there are housing opportunities here and 
getting the desired outcome. 
 
The first, second and third categories on the spreadsheet cover the marketing and communication 
aspects of the City’s housing needs.  A very important aspect is contained in the first category — 
Establishing goals and measurements.  The fourth category is more of a one-on-one personal direct 
contact with builders.  The fifth and final category covers the general responsibilities that Zanola is 
proposing to be involved in on a management leadership participation basis.  This also includes Zanola’s 
support and contribution to the City’s “Creativity Redefined” branding efforts.   
 
 

City of Mt. Vernon 
1100 Main PO Box 1708 

Mt. Vernon, IL 62864 
cityclerk@mvn.net 

618-242-5000 
FAX 618-242-6867 

www.mtvernon.com 

Jerilee Hopkins 
City Clerk 

 



  City Council Workshop Meeting 
  Monday, January 14, 2013    
 

 2 

City Manager Neibert indicated that the total cost reflected for the program ranges from $83,510.00 to 
$116,800.00 for program year 2013.  Obviously, follow-up years will cost significantly less.   
 
Mayor Chesley noted that the City has builders who are ready to move forward with plans for houses, 
condominiums and/or townhouses.  It’s time for them to come to city hall and get their project moving.  
She inquired about how to approach these builders?   City Manager Neibert indicated that this project is 
geared to those who have no knowledge of housing opportunities in Mt. Vernon.  Mayor Chesley wants 
to address assisting those who are ready to proceed.  Mr. Zanola stated that they are ready and willing 
to offer insight and advice to these developers.  City Manager Neibert confirmed that Mr. Zanola will 
meet with developers to discuss their plan and complete a checklist of items that need to be addressed.   
Mayor Chesley asked who will develop the checklist.   
 
Council Member Piper expressed his excitement about the proposal.  The communication and marketing 
foundations will allow everyone to be on the same page.  Also, the process guide because the City has 
gone through the process guide for commercial buildings and now residential buildings.  He noted the 
importance of having the City, developers, real estate agents and banks all on the same page.  In Piper’s 
opinion, Mr. Zanola and Rachel are proposing to increase the prospect list and put that in a customer 
funnel so that the City has housing customers coming out the other end with developments on the 
ground.  The bottom line is that this increases the City’s prospects for development.  City Manager 
Neibert cited that if the customer/developer’s project is weak from one standpoint, the City will funnel 
them to the source of useful information or the entity that can provide that assistance to move the 
project along.   
 

 
 



  City Council Workshop Meeting 
  Monday, January 14, 2013    
 

 3 

 
 

Several local housing professionals were in the audience to find out more about the marketing program.  
Neibert stated that he and Zanola will meet with them after today’s meeting to lend their assistance. 
 
Local real estate agent, David Parker, presented the Council with a plan for his development at 
Woodglen Acres.   Mr. Zanola commented that before he can offer Mr. Parker advice it is necessary that 
he first view the building site and then meet with Mr. Parker.  Parker commented, “We’ve been asking 
for this for a long time. This is a big step in the right direction. I think in a year from now, you will be 
proud of what happened in this meeting.”  Parker’s proposal is as follows: 

 

 



  City Council Workshop Meeting 
  Monday, January 14, 2013    
 

 4 

Mr. Zanola noted that he is eager to meet with developers in similar situations and reminded that these 
meetings would be held confidential. 
 
Council Member Piper noted that this approach is economic development at its best.  When a 
corporation, company or individual looks to start a business in Mt. Vernon their first call is to the City 
Manager or Mary Ellen Bechtel at Jefferson County Development Corporation (JCDC) inquiring about 
incentives.   Piper asked if there were any plans for incentives for developers at this point, which Zanola 
said was “premature. “  At this point the City isn’t far enough along in the process to identify the types 
of projects which may need incentives.  Marketing and response will dictate if at some point incentives 
are needed.  According to Mr. Zanola a developer looks for marketing opportunity, cooperation and 
support from the community, low risk and opportunity for return so incentives may or may not be 
needed to make a deal work. 
 
Chesley remarked that the incentives, if any, could change with the project and type of housing like an 
economic development approach in that the City works with each development separately.  Neibert 
added that if the City is inundated with interest for multi-family developers who are ready to build, the 
City may decide it is not necessary to incentivize multi-family developments based on the market 
conditions and the response the City is receiving.  Single-family subdivisions may need incentives based 
on what the market supports and the strength of our market.   
 
Council Member Piper recognized that developers are in this business to make money, and it’s a risky 
business.  This approach will allow the City to reach a whole different tier of developers.  But the Mayor 
countered by saying that the playing field will be level with developers receiving all the same basic 
information.   
 
Council Member McEnaney commented that incentives will be important, and he agreed that each 
project will be viewed individually as far as water, sewer, and roadways, etc.   
 
Council Member Piper asked Mr. Zanola to explain the two dollar amounts or ranges indicated next to 
each of the categories on the spreadsheet.  Zanola indicated these categories are interconnected so the 
final cost will depend on what the Council decides.  At that point the dollar amounts will be firmed up.  
Zanola also indicated that the items placed at the beginning of the spreadsheet, left to right, are 
prioritized as well as the categories from the top of the spreadsheet down.  City Manager Neibert noted 
that columns 1 and 2 are more preparatory and columns 3, 4 and 5 are geared toward the 
implementation of the program.   
 
Council Member Lash asked about the timeline required to accomplish columns 1 and 2.  Mr. Zanola 
indicated 8 to 10 weeks.   
 
City Manager Neibert recommended that the Council ask Mr. Zanola to prepare a professional services 
contract to perform the functions in columns 1 and 2; the first two items in column 3; and the first three 
items in column 4.  Zanola agreed with the recommendation.   
 
Council Member Piper asked Mr. Parker when the construction season begins.  Parker noted that after 
March once the ground has thawed.   
 
City Manager Neibert suggested that Mr. Parker notify his office in order to schedule an appointment to 
discuss his building plan. 
 



  City Council Workshop Meeting 
  Monday, January 14, 2013    
 

 5 

Mr. Zanola agreed to prepare a contract, a preliminary timeline and baseline matrix and forward this 
information to Jane before noon on Friday so that the Council may address the issue at the City Council 
meeting on Tuesday, January 22, 2013.   
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
No Executive Session was held. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Council Member Piper to adjourn. Seconded by Council Member Lash. Yeas: Lash, 
McEnaney, Piper and Chesley.  Council Member Wood was absent.    
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 
      
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Jerilee Hopkins 
      City Clerk 


